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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SMS Water Grace Mediwaste
Management Private Limited (“the Company"). which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2024, and the statement of profit and less (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
fo the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the slate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profits (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for other information The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does nol cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
gppropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors

either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We alsa

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive lo those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations. or the override of internal control,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statement in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Direclors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern
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+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i1} to evaluate the effect of any Identified misstatements in the

financial statements.

We communicate wilth those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audil and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify duning our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements :

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. of the
accompanying financial statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(€) The financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 1332 of the Act,
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{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)

(a)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A wherein
we have expressed unmodified opinion;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does nol have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March
2024

. {a) The Management has represented thal, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregale) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Imermediaries”). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or ctherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b} The Management has represented, that, 1o the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and
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W,

vi.

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the management representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March
2024

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31 March
2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit. we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
1st April. 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Compames (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statulory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March. 2024

(h) Based on our audil, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any

managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of
the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accourtants

Firm Reg No.1 1EFES4W

2

CA. Suresh Galani

Partner

Membership No, 168182

Magpur, August 10, 2024
UDIN: 2416 812 B C 28N 7833
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“Annexure A" To the Independent Auditor's Report referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date
to the members of SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
on the financial statement for the year ended 31* March 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statement under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement over financial
reporting of SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the
Company’) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Direclors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensunng
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Mote") and
the Standards on Auditing. issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial contrals system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or fror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management cverride of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system owver
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.110634W

J.»-

CA. Suresh Galani
Partner

Membership No. 168192
Nagpur, Auvgust 10, 2024

UDIN. 2416 81925k 2.BN 7389
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Annexure B paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of SMS WATER GRACE
MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024:

A statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (“the order"”), in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the
Company, Is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee and buildings created on lease premises) disclosed
in note 2 to the financial statements are held In the name of the Company.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year.

(e} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
{as amended) and rules made thereunder

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory al reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to bock records

110634W

\ \



V. K. SURANA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
YV C.A COMPLEX CIVIL LINES NAGPUR - 440 001
Ph Mo (OF12) 6841111, Fax [D712) 6641122
e-mailinfofvksca com

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii})
{a) The Company has made investments in and provided loans or advances in the nature
of loans to its related parties and others during the year as per details given below::

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year
| & SHL;r.bé.n.:lianes o = | -
- Joint Venlures B -
- Assoclates - -

- Other rela!_gd parties - 270.00 |
-Others. 50,00 .
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries N - -
- Joint Ventures - ——

- Associates =
- Other related parties s 26989
- Others 5012 -

{b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in
the nature of loans, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company

{c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company. the
schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the interest has not been
stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the

repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.

(d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans. we are unable 1o
comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more than 90 days.
Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal

amounts and interest.
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{e) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and interest has not been stipulated. According to
the information and explanation given to us, such loans have not been demanded for
repayment as on date.

{fi The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or penod of repayment, as per

details below:
Rs in Lakhs
Amount of loan Percantage to the
SYPO.SE BeRToar outstanding total Loans
Outstanding As at 31st M_arch 2024 B
Promater - =
Directors - =
KMPs = =
Related Party 269.89 J 96%
v} The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.

As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
VI of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 in
respect of investments, as applicable.

) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Vi The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order s not applicable

vil)

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
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wlil)

ix)

i)

b)

applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (inciuding debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reparted during the period coverad by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the

period covered by our audit

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, there are na whistle-blower complaints

received by the Company during the year.
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xil)

xiil)

®iv)

)

xvl)

xwil)

xvili)

xix)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act, The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc . as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an
audit committee under section 177 of the Act

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to and consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of
section 138 of the Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with
the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company

The Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a) (b) and (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention. which causes us to believe that any matenal uncertainty exists as on the dale
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing

o of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
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x¥)

®xil

the balance sheet date. We, however, siate that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
hiabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet
the criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting
under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been
included in respect of said clause under this repor.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.110634W
L1

CA. Suresh Galani
Fartrer

u}_:r"‘

Membership No. 168192
Nagpur, August 10, 2024

UDIN: 24/8 8192 BK(2&N 7889



EME WATER GRACE MEDITWASTE MAKAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheetl as al 31st March 2024

Particulars Note No. As at Al at
3i-Mar-34 d1-Mar-23
Tin Lacs tin Laes

1 ARBBETE
1. Non-current assets:

{al Property, plant and equipment 2 23.44 23.47
it} Camtal work in progress 3 11.00 B.20
[l Financial assesis
il Crher fnanclal sssats 4 9.01 1.68
(d)  Defermoed wmx ssscis (Net] 5 o711 73.36
fef  Uther non-mrrent assets Fi 4,74 1.51
Total Noan-current assets 153.28 109.32
2. Current assels:
fa] Inventories T 18,79 23959
ikl Financial gasets
il Imvestments & 561,14 _
ity Trade recenables q 28(.20 381.01
[fii] Cagh and cash eguivalents s 27 .36 155.28
] Pank belandce other than (i) above 11 15.44 16.05
fv]  Other financial asseis 12 251.00 111
(el Current ad-assces (net) 13 13.42 5.28
jd] Tther curment assets 14 837 7.07
Total current assets 754.69 S58B.7T8
TOTAL ASBETS 907.98 &98.10
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity:
[a] Equity share capital 15 190048 14028
(bl Cther equity 16 48393 28278
Total equity 674.21 473.06
2. Liabilities:
2,1 Non-current Habilities;
in) Financial lahilites
[ij Lease Linbilitics 17 1.58 149
b}  Provisions 18 1246 B.85
Total Non-current liabilities 14.04 10.77
2.2 Current labilities:
fa)  Finaneial Hablliles
{ll Leéase Liahilities 19 .31 0,28
() Trade pavables 20
[#) Tomi cutstanding dues of micro enterprises wod 024 0.05
ginull enterprises
{B)  Tetal putstanding durz of creditors other than 10040 19.68
micro enterprises and zmall enterprises
[fiil  Other finencial Tublsies 21 130.20 119.04
iy  Other current Habilites 22 7734 73.89
fel  Prowisions 23 1.50 1.33
Total Current Lishilities 219.73 21437
Total Linbilities 233.77 225.04
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAHILITIES 90T.98 698.10
Materisl Accounting Policies 1

e accampanying notes are an miegral part of (he fnaocisl siatemenis

Ag per our report af even dare

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Hrplf‘munn Do (110AW

M

Fartner [M.No, 168193)
11,|g_'|':|ur Drated ﬂ

PRABAL PRATAP SINGH JADON
Direitor

[N - (6913074 DIN  Q3ET2644




EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT FRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

III.

Feveaue frem aperatinns
Other income a5
Total incoms (T+11)

H

Lhzeet Expenges
Purchagses of stock-in-trade
Chanpges in inventories of stoci-in-trade
Emplovee benefits expenae e
Finance costs a0
Deprecintion and smortization expeiise 1l
Other expenses 3
Total expense
Profit/{loss) befores tax {III-IV)
Tax Expenas:

Current Tax

Deferrad Tax

Enrlier year tax adivarment
Total Tax Expenses
Profit/{Loss] for the year (V-V}

%8
a7
48

. Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Il et Gain | (Loss| on Remeasurement defined

Benefit Plan

Incomie Tax relating to item that will not be

clossified o Profit or Loss

Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Net Gain [ (Loss) an Falr valug changes of

Inveatment in Debt Instrumenats

Ifcome Tax relating to Bem that will not be

claszified to Profit or Loss

Tatal other comprehensive lncome [ (Loas] (Net af Tax)
Taotal comprehensive income for the year (VII+VII)
Earnings per equity shure of parwmiue of €10/~ ew 39
1) Basic

[2) Driluted

Muterial Accounting Pollcies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

Note No.

Year endad Year endad
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
?in Lacs tin Lacs
704,45 BTR.TV
18.07 4 10
T22.53 G83.T6
2HH.AT 234 40
78,70 Bilad
.40 23.30
115,10 oY.08
0.22 0.31
8.57 1367
S7.%99 58.52
522.11 485.93
200.42 197.84
33.54 33.07
[33.87) {33.89
oy (0.07)
|0.36) 10.89)
200.77 198.72
0.38 028
10.10) [E.0F)
0.2 =
(2.03] -
0.47 0.21
201.25 198.93
10,55 10.44
10.55 1044

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO -adonhnhnl.‘lnl’th-l

wl af
EMENT PVT LTD

Charterod Aveountants I'.ﬁ. Gmk MEDIWAST

[Firm Registration Na. 11 10634W m'.ll U531 11
A

cA GURESH GALANI | F No ) FRABAL PRA smoa JADON

Fartner (M, No, 168 19d) I 9 ; Direytor

Maggar, Dated -ﬁl-l.lj\u}i r'-.h.’} DIN - 0621307

UOIN -9 Ly| 6 132%‘::*2@!*‘1’9@



EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31ut March 2024

Yeer ended Year ended
Particulars F1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 in Lacs 2 In Lacs
Cash flow from oparating activities
Frofil before thx 20042 197 8=
Adjustment to reconclle profit before tax (o net cash Nows
Depreclation & Amortisation Expenses B.5T L1267
Fianee Cost 032 0.a1
Losz on sale of property, plant & squuipment 0.11 .27
Account Write off | written back 714 033
nterest income on fixed deposit receipts (1.31] (2.897)
inerating profit before working capita!l changes 21516 208.45
Movements in working capital :
Increase/ [decrrase) in trade payahles [A43) 6.90
Increase [ [decrease) i other Current Financial Liabilities .13 1078
Inerease / [deerrase] in other Current Liabilities 344 R
Increase ) [decrease) i Provision 3.095 270
Deorease / [increasel in trade receivables 33.65 27.a7
Decroasze [ |increasa) in Other Non-Carrent Asscis {1.22) .03
Decrease | [increasel in other current assets (2.4} V.66
Decrease J§ [increase) i Invenmoy 4.20 20,35
Diecrease | [increse) in Other current financial assets 1279.8% 0.39
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 31.57 272.64
Mirect Trax Paid f Adjusted 133 54§ [33.04
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) [1.97) 239.40
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of propeity, plant & equipment, including intangible asset=,
Capital work-in-progress and Capital Advance (10.35) (B.91)
Net Incoease | ([Diecreases) in Fixed [epogit Receipts (6. 72 5092
interest recalvad 1.31 2497
Murual Funds Purchased (56,00
Het cash flow from /(used in) investing activities (B) [65.76) 44.98
Cash flow from financing activities
Net inorease /[decreass] in Short Term Borrowhngs - (16119
Fmance Cost {0.22) (0313
Met cash flow from/{used in) in financing activities (C) {0.23) [161.51)
Met increase [ [decreass) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B - C) [67.95| 122,87
Casl and cash equivalents at the heginning of the yeat 155.28 3241
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the year 87.33 155.28

Material Accounting Policies

The cash flow statemens has been prepared as per indirect method us sct out in Indian Accounting Standard

[IND-AS 7)
The accompanvifg notes are an integral part of the financia! statements,

As per our repart of even date

FOR V. K. EURANA & COD
Chartered Accountants

Fir {sfrat L L10634W
" Rﬂﬁﬂ:g‘f;l;"“ /';f-_'_
?“}J [ : En 1 \Ix
CA H G 1;“_””_,;,”-

Fartoor (M.No, 168192} S
Nagpur, Doted 'Hﬂ.ﬂ lm-./
YPIIHICR192 Brez G TR

PRATAF SINGH JADON
Diredyor

TN :0a913074

For and on behelf of the Board of Directors of

DIN : 03272644



EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes [n Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

Particulars Hote No. ?in Lacs
Amount
A. Equily Share Capital 15
As at 1st April, 2023 10 28
Chanyrs in Equily Share Capibul -
As at 31st March, 2024 190.28
As at 1st April, 20232 1940 28
Changrs in Equity Share Capital =
As at 31et March, 2023 190.28
B. Other Equity 16
tin Lacs
Other Comprehensive [ncome
Debt
Rasarve & instruments
Particulars Femegaurement Total
Surplus SR defined Benefit
Other B
Comprehensive
Income
Balance oy ot 1=t April, 2023 281.96 0.B2 2B2.TH
Profit/ (loss) for the yenr 200,77 - 200,77
COther comprehensive income for the years == 0.09 0.38 0.av
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 A82.T4 0.0% 110 483.93
Balunce as at 1st April. 2022 B3.24 - 0.61 B3.85
Profit/ (loss] for the year 198.72 - . 198,72
Uther comprehenaive income for the véars - - 0.21 021
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 281.96 - 0.82 283.78
Maoterial Acceunting Palicies 1

The accnmpanying notes are an integral part of the Ghandal statements
Ag perouf report of even date

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Charersd Accountants

Firm Registration Ne. o1 10634W Hl'xl CIN : US2100

PRABAL PRATAY SINGH JADON
Partner (M. N0, 168193 | 4 T OEEETE gy Directpr

MNagr, Dated MU&" W{ . LN .'Ul'}';r”- 0TS
I NS 192 RKE T g8

Far and on behall of the Board of Directors of
a@pmm GRACE MEDIWAS
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EMSE WATER GRACE MEDIWAETE MANAGCEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes to Mnanclal stalements for the year ended 31st Merch 2024

1) Materizl ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS AS AT 31st MARCH 2024

I} Corparate information
SMSE Waler Grace Mediwaste Management Private Limited is & Private Limited s Company domiciled in India and
Inecrporated en 29nd Feb 2011 under the provision of Compunies Act. [t iz & subsidisey Company of SMS Envocars
| Lad. The company i= in the business of managemen! of blomedical waste manngement & disposal Service., The
compatyy provides solutions for scientific treatment & disposal of bioc medical waste by the latest ecofriendly
technologies

it} Basis of preparation

Complisnce with [ND AB

These financial siatements have been preépared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafte:
referred to as the Ind ASY) s notified by Minisoy of Corponite Affairs pursusnt to Section 133 of the Companies
Aet, 2013 ['Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 asn amended and nther
relevant provisions of the Act

=

The accounting policies are appled congstently tooall the penods preeented in the finanoal sratemenes, exeent
where a newly igsued accounfing standard = imanally adopted or & revigion to an existing accounting standsard
requires 8 change in the aecountmg palicy hithertn in ose

i} Historical Cost Conventions
The Financinl Statements hove been prepared on historical cost basis.

ifl] Current Versus Non Current Classification
| All gxsets and labilities have Deen classified az current or non=ourrent as per the Company’s normol operating
cycle (twelve monthsiand other criteria set gut In the Schedule 11 1o the Act

ivj Rounding off of Amounts
All Emounts disclosed in financiol swtemenis and notes heve been rounded off to the noearest lnkhe as per the
requirement of Schedule M, unleas otherwipe stated.

ifl) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial ararements (n conformitny with ind AS reguires the management to make judgmenta,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Habilldes and the
dizclosure of contingent linbilities, at the end of the reporiing period. The estimzates and judpements used in the
preparation of financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical
experience and various other assumptions and factors (inclhuding expectadons of future events) that the Company
believes o be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between Actual results and estimetes &ro
recogniged in the period in which the resulte ore Koown ! materialised. The said estimates are baged on the facte and
events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that pcourred after that date but provide additional evidence about
conditions existing as at the reporting date.

The areas inwiving estimation of uncertainty and judgement at the date of the financial statements, which may cause
4 material adjuatment tn the carrying amounts of assers and labilives within the next financial year given below:

o) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

) Current Tax Payabie

¢ Valpaton of deferred tax assetn

dy  Fair value measurement aof financial instrumenes

el Defined Benefit Obligation

f) Probable outvomne of matters holuded urider Contingen! Linbilities

g Revenue Recognation

Detailed information about each of these sstimatez and judgements i3 ncluded in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of caleulation for each affected line itern affected in finacial Stolements.

Material Accounting Policles:
Praperty Plant and Equipment

Recognition k Measurement

e

All tems of property, plant and equipment are staced at eost less depreciotion and impairment, iCany. Histerical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attibutable 1o the acquisition of “he items.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property plant & equipment sutstanding at each balance sheet date is classified
as capial advances under other non corrent asssts-and the cost of azser not put to cse before such dete wre disclosed
under "Capital workt in progress . Subsequent costs are incloded in the asset’s camying amount or recogmised as o
separaie assel, a8 appropriate, enly when it is probable thar future economic benefits associated with the fem will
fiow fo the Company and the cost of the item can be messured relisbly. The carmving amount of any compansnat
accvunted for as 4 separate asset i3 derccogrised when replaced, Al other repairs and mamienance are charged 1o
the Statement of Prafit and Loss during the reparting period in which they are ineurred.




EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial stalements for the year ended 31st March 2024

i)

L]

<l

d

e

Depreciation Methods useful lives and residunl value
Deprecation is calouwlated on & wnitten down value basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as per provided i
Fart C of seheduie |1 of the company act 2013 or remaming Life of the project which ever 2 leas.

For Lepreication of Landfll Assot, the Company evaluates the cost of construction of Landfill and also the capacity of
landfll in Metrie Ton [MT]. Based on this the company evaluntes Per MT Ratz of depreciation 1o be charge on landfill
Every year the company evaluales the quantity of waste disposed off in landfill and charge depreciation on landfill by
miultiplying the Per MT depreciaton rate with the quanitty of waste disposed during the year

The company. based on technical assessment made by technical experr and management eatimate, depreciates
certain items of building, plant and sqguipment over eatimated useful Eves whilch are same as the useful life prescribed
it Schedide [ 1w the Compamies Act. 2013, The management believes: thaet these estimated useful lives are realistic
and redlect fair approximation of the periad over whileh the assets are ikely to be used,

Ligeful life considered for caleulation of depreciatonfor various assets class are as follows-

Asset Class Useful Life
Hullding 30 Years
Flant and Equipment 15 Years
Furniture snd Fixtares 101 years
Office Equaprients 3 years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 years

An item of property, plant and equapment and any Matena part mnitally recopnized is derecopnized upon dispogal or
when no future sconomic benefits are expected from its vee or disposal Aoy gan or 1ok ansing on deresognition /
dispozal of the asset [calculated as the difference beoween the net dispesal procesds and the carmying amount of the
a=set) s inchuded in the income statement when the aseer is derecognized.

Resichual value of the asset is considered a0 020046 of Gross Block of 4sset

Property that i= held for long-term rental yields or for capitel apprecmtion or boath, and that iz not sccupied by the
Company, # classified as investment property. Investment property i measured al e cost, neluding related
rransartion costs and where applicable bormowing costs less depreciation and impairment if amy.

lotangible Assets -

Intangible aasels acquired seporately are corried at eost less accumulated amartisatinn and aceumuiated impoirmernt
losses. Cost of a nonmonetary asset soquired in exchonge of another non-monetary assel is measured ot fnir value.
Intangmble assets are amortised over 3 years with written down value bosis from the date that they are available for
Lag

Inventoriey :-

Inventorded are valued ‘at the cost or net reslisable value whichever is lower. Cost comprise of all the cost of purchase
and ather coxts Incurred in bringing the inventories to present locasion snd condition. Cost formulae used is
"Weighted Average Cost',. Duie allowarnce iz estimated and made for defective end absolete items, wherever necessary.

Inwve Partn firm, Joint Ventures and Asgocistes

Inventmenta in subsidindes, jont ventures and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27, Except where
investments accounted for at eost shall be accounted for in arcordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Hald for
Sale and Discontinued Operatians, when they are classified as held for sale.

Leages :-
The company has appled Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative
|nformation has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17,

A lesgen :
The company recognises a fght-ol-use asset and a lcase Lability at the lease commeneement date: The right-ol-use
amset s initlally measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount af the lease labllity adjusted for any lease
pavments made al of before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 1o
dismaontle ond remove the underlying asser or 1o restore the underlving asset or the site on which it s located, less
poy lease Inoentives received.,

The right-of-use assct is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date o the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-ol-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful Uves of rght-oi-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In additon, the fght-of-use asset is pericdically reduced by impairment josses; if any, and adjusted far
certain re-measurcments of the lesse Gnbility.

The lease lability is ‘nitally messured at the present value of the lease payments that ere nol pad ar t!ur
commencement dete, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, company's incremental borrowling rate. —
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EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes to Minancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Generally, the company uses its incremerntal borrowing rate as the discount rate, Leass payments inchaded in the
measurement of the lease linbility comprise the fol lowing:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or & rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement dute;

Ampunis exproled Io be payable under a residual value gusrantee: and
= The eacrcise price under & purchass option that the company s reasonably certain b exercise, lease payments in ay
apthonal mrewal period I the company Is reasonably certain to exercse an extension sptivn, and penalties for carly
terminarion of a leage unless the compeny is reasonubly certain ot to lerminate early,

The lease lability is measured at amortised cost usng the effective interest method. It is remessured when there is a
change in future lease payments arsing from & change in an index or rate, f there is a change in the company's
catimale of the amouni expected 1 be payable under a residusl velur guarentee, or if company changes s
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchace, extrneion or termination aption.

Whien thie lease Labllity is remeasured in this way, a commesponding adjustment 15 made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded |n profit or loss if the carrying wneint of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to

Ehnst-term leeses and le low-value Gssels -

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets gnd lease abilites {or short-term |eases of real eatate
properties that Have a l2ase term of 12 months The company recognises the [ease payments assaciated with rtheae
[Fases a8 AN eXperse of & straight-line hasis over the lease term.

Linder Ind AS 17 -

In the comparative period, 85 & lessce the company classified lenses that trensfer substantially sl of the risks and
rewards of ownership az finance Irases When thiz was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an
amount eguitl ta the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimom ledse payments. Mintmum lease
payments were the payments over the |rase term that the lessee was required 1o make, excluding any contingent rent.

Subzequently, the agsets were accounted for in gocordance with the sccounting policy applicable to that asser. Assets
hald under ather leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised [n the company's statement of
financial position. Payments made under coerating leases were recogniged in profit or loss on & strafght-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised s an integral part of the totol lease expense,
over the term of the lease

Leasey are classified &s finance Jeases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantally all the risks und rewacds
incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company. All other lesses are classified a3 aperating leazses. Finance
leases are cupltalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, If lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The comeszponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowlngs or other financivl labilites ss appropriste. Esch lease peyment ¢ allocated between the liability snd
finance cost The finance cout is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period 8o a3 to produce & constant periodic
ewte of interest on the remaining baleance of the ligbility for esch period.

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cagh cquvalear in the balance sheer comprise cazh at anks and on hand and fixed deposits wath original

marurity of three months or less which are subject to an inMaterisl sk of change in value.

Borrowings are initislly recognised 2t net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any
difference berween the proceeds [net of ransaction costs} and the redemption ampunt is recognised in the Statement
af Profit &nd Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Finan enta:
{ij Financial Assets
1} Classification

The company classifics its Gnancial Asscts in the ollowing measuremenl categories:

a) Those measured at amortised cost.

bl Those w be messured subsequently ot fwir value jeither through other comprehensive or through ststermen
of prodit aond Lasss), and

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing thie financial assets and the

cuntractusl terms of the cash flows.

2) Initial Recognition and measurement .
All firuncinl assets are tecagnised initially at fair value, TraNsacton costs of financial nesety carried at fair value
through the Profit and Lost @re expensed in the Simtement of Profit and Loss.




EME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Lo financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

3

4

5)

i)

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subscquent, measurement, financial assets are classified in following

a) Financial assets at amortized cost
Fmancinl assets are subsequently measured ot amortised cost if these financial ssgets are held within o
business mode] with an objective to hold these assetz in arder to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dotes o cash fiows that are solely payments af
principal and nterest on the principal amount outstznding: Interest income from these financial aseets ic
included In finance incomne using the effective mterest rate (‘EIR") method, lmpairment gains or losses
ariging on these assets are recogrieed in the Staternent of Profit and Loss,

b] Financial assets at fuir value through other comprehensive income

Financial assers are measured at fobr value through other comprehensive income if 1hese financial asacts arc
held within & business whose objective {s achieved hy 5nth eollecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assers and the contrartusl térms of the financisl asset give rise on spocified dates to cash Oows
that arc solely paymeonis of prnncipal and interes: on the princinal amount oursianding Movernenis in 1he
cartying amoun: are token through OCH, except for the recognitlon of impairment gains or losses, (nierest
revenue and foreign exchange paing snd losses which are recopnised in the Statcment of Profit and Loss (o
respect of equily investments (@ther than for investment in subsidiaries and associates) which are not held
for trading, the Company has made sn irrevocable election in present subsequent changes in the fair value
of such Instruments in OC1 Such an ele¢tion s mede by the Company on an instrument by instroment
basis at the time of ransition for existing equity instruments, initial recognition for new equity Instruments.

¢} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Finuneial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loas unless it 15 measured ot smormzed cost ar
at fair vahie thromgh other eomprehensive inpome on initial reenpnation. The transachon cnsta directiy
attnbutable tn the sequisibon of fGnandal asseta st fair valoe threugh profit oF Ioas are omediately
recognized in statement of profit and lose.

impairment of Finaneial Assets

In mecordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement
and recognition of impairment fogs on financial assets and credit risk exoosures The Company follows simplified
appronch’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance o trade receivebles, Simplified approach does not require
the Company to track chanpes in eredit rielk. Rather, it recopnises impairment loss allowence based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial Tecogrition. For recogrition of impadrment loss on other finnncial
asscts and risk exposuse, the Company determines that whether there has been 2 Material increase in the credit
risk since initiz] recogaition. I eredit risk has not increased Materially, 12-month ECL iz used to provide far
impairment loss. Howewver, if credit risk has imereased Matermlly, fifetime ECL 15 used. I in a subsegaent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 12 no longer a Matenn! increage in credit risk sinee
initial recopnition. then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. ECL
iz the difference between gl contractual cash fows that are due o the group in accordance with the eontract and
all the cash Qows that the entity expects ta receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls),

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractuel rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the fnancial asset and substantinlly =l fsks and rewards of ownership of the asset (o
another entity. If the Company aeither ransfers nor retains substandally all the rsks and rewards of ownershup
and continges to control the tmpsferred asset, the Company recognizes ite retained interest in the aseetg and an
assncinted lahility for amounts it may have ta pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of owrership of a tronsferred financinl gesct, the Company continues to recognise the fnancial azset and also
recognises & collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Equity Instrument And Finanecial Lisbilities
Financial Kabilities end equity instruments is=eed by the Company are classified according to the substones of
the contraciual arrangements entered inlg and the definitions of 8 financia! lisbility and an equity instrument

Instruments
ﬁ:u:gmy ingtrment I8 any eonteact that evidences & residual intergst in the asaets of the Coampany afmer
dedurting all of ite liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are mecorded at the prooeeds
receved, net of direct ssue costs. Fgquity ingruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are
recorded at fair valne of the squity mstroment.

Financial Liabilities

1] Initial recogrition and Moasurement .
Finuncial linbilitien are recognized initially ot fair value and in cuse of borrowing and payables; netof directly
attribuiable cast,
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b1

b

2| Subsequent measurement
Financial habilities are subsequently camed at amortized cost using the effectve interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in n business combination which is subsequently messured ar fair vahie
throuph profit or loss, For trade and other payables matunng withun one year from the balanee sheer date,
the carrying smounts spproximate fair value due to the short matunty of these tnstriments,

3] De-recogaition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liahilities are de-recogiised when the oblization gpecified m the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired, When an existing financial Hahility is replaced by snother froen the same lender on substantially
different terms. or the terme of an existing lebility e substautielly modified, sucl an exchunge or
medificativn s tented as de-recognition of the originel lisbility and recognition of @ new lability, The
difference in the respective carmying sinounis s recopnised in the Stutement of Profit and Loss.

4] Offsetting Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there s a currently enforceahle Iepal right te offset the recognised amounts and there i= an intention fo setile
on & net basls ro realise the assets and settle the labilites simultanescusly,

impairment of Nog-Finnocial Assets:

The Company assesses ol cach Balance Shee: date whether there 18 any indication that an asset, including intengible
asset, may be impeired. If eny such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash gencreting unit to which the asset
belangs fa less than ita carnding amount, the cartying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Frofit and Loss Account,

Rocoverable amount is determined:
- In case of an individual seeet, 6t the higher of the asseta’ foir value less cost o 360l and valae in use: and

- In caze of cash generating unit (A group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash penerating unit’s fair value leas cost to s=]l and value [n use.

In assessine value o owae, the estimated future cash fows sre discounted o their present value dsing pre-tax
digcount rate that reflects current marke! assessments of the dme valoe of money and sk specified o the asact.
In determining fuir valie less cost o sell, recent markel transaction are taken into account, I no such
ransaction can be identificd, an appropnete valuation model is used.

Tmpairment lasses of continuimg operatons, ineluding impaimment on inven:ores, are recngmized in othe
Statement of Proft and Loss, except for properties’ previously revallied with the revaluation taken tn GOCL For
such properties, the mpairmen? 18 recogrised i OO up to the amount of any previeus revaluation. When the
Company cnnsiders that there are no realistic prospects of meovery of the assar, thie relevant amounis are writhen
aff If the amount of impairment lnzs subzequently decresses and the decrense can be related objectively to an
event ocedrming after the mmpairment Wag recognised, then the previoosly rerognised impairment [pss s reversed
thrsigh the Statement of Profit and |nes.

Provisi Con d C Asgets:-

A provision is recognized when the company has the present obligation (legal and constructive] a4 & result of past
events, for waich it ie probabie thiat sn outilow of resouroes embodying econornic benefits will be required to settle the
abligarion and & reliable estmate can be made Provistons are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necegsary to
reflect the current hest estimate of the obligation. When a company éxpects provision to be reimbiirsed, the

i buTaEment 15 recognized Bs @ separate usset only when reimbursement {8 virtually certain,

A diselosure of contingent labilites fs made where there is possible obligation or present obligation that may proboahiy
ot require an outflow of resaurces. When there is possible or @ present chligation where there i2 likelihood of outflow
of respuree {s remote, o provision or disclosure s made.

Contingent Assels are nol recognized in the financial sratemenis,

Provisions, Contingent Asset & Contingent Liabilities are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to
reflect the current best estimate of the obligation.

Revenue Recognition:

Ihe Compuny earns revenus primarily from Bio Medical Waste Disposal Services and allied activities ncluding
rrasportation of Bie Medical waste,

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has spplied Ind AS 115 "Revenue From Contracts with Customers® which
establishes o comprehensive frameworit for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recogaised
Ind AS 115 replaces Tnd AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS | | Construction Contracts. Company did ot lave contracts that
were not completed as of Aprill,2018. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the finuncial sfatements af the
Company 15 mMaterial.
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o)

ql

Revenue is measured bescd on the imnsaction price, which s the consideration, adjusted for volume discounis,
service lovel credils, perforinance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. if any. as specifled in the contract with
the rustamer. Revenue alao excludes taxes collected from customers,

Hevenue has been recognized on accronl busis at the time of receipt of *Bin Medical Waste®

Membership fees are recognized as income over the pericd of membership on pro rata basis)

Government Gramts :-

Girants from the govemment are recognised at their fabr value where thore is reasonable asaurance that the grant will
be recvived and the Company will comply with sl sttached conditions:

Grvernmen! grants relating 1o the purchase of property, plant end equipment are included in capital reserve as
deferred income and are eredited to Profit and Lose on & written down value basis over the remadning perod of the
praject and presented within other income

Foreign currency Translation :-

i) Functional and presentation currency :-
The financial statements are presented in Indiagn rupee {INR), which 18 Compuriy's Tunclional and presentation
I:'L[i'l.'l:‘l'll'_'f.

{i} Trapsactions and balances :-
Transections i foreign currencies: are recognised af the prevalling excheange raies on the {ransaction dates,
Realized gains and losses on settiement of forelgn currency ansactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, Monetary foreign curmency essets and Labilities at the yesr-end are transizied at the year-end
excharpe rates and the resuitant exchanpe differenices are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Borrowing Costs :-
Bormowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, constructian o production of an asact that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to pet ready for its intended use as part of the cos: of asset. Al other borrowing costs are
expenses in the period in which they gcour. Borrowing costs conslst of interest and other costs that an entity ncurs
In comnection with the borrowing of funds.

Taxes on [ncome:

ij] Current Tax:-
The income tax expense or oredit, if there i3 any for the peripd is the t=x pavable on the current period's taxable
inoome based on the applicable lncome tax rate as per Income tex Act 1961, Current Income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoversd from or paid to the taxation authorties.

li} Deferred Tax:-

Deferred meome t=x iy provided e full, weing the Balance sheet approach method on tempormoy differences
arising betwees the tax bases of assets and lishilites and their carrying smount in the financial statement, if
there g any. Deferred income tax [s determined usibg tex rates jund Iawsd) that hove been enagted or
subsiantially enacted by the end af the reparting period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred
income tax uzgets is realined or the deferred income tex liability is sertled. Deferred tax nssets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it 8 probable that future taxsble amouniz will
be available to utilise those temporary differences end losses.

E Ben i=

{j Bhort- oh’ ions :-
Linhilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary bencfits that are expected to be sertod wholly within
12 months after the end of the perdod [n which the emplovees render the related setvice are recognised in respect
of employess’ services up to the end of the reporting peried and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
wion the liabalities age setiled

Leave Encashment
The leave oblipations cover the Company's liahility for sick, casual and camed leave. The Lisbilities for sick and

casusl Leave are treated es current labilities since there 5 ng polley for the payment of these liabilities and right
te avadl these leave expires within 12 Months. The fHobilities for eorned |eave aro classified as non-curmend,
however no discounting is done for these as company cxpects the discounting rate and salary Increase rate to be

similar i.e 6%.
ilj Post-em t ohligations ;-

a] Defined benefit plan such es gratuity; and
b} Defined contribution plan such as provident foed,
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Gratulty obligations

The Hability or asset recognised in the balance shest in respect of defined benefit gramity plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the and of the reparting period less the feir value of plan azsets. The definged benefit
ahligation is calmalated annmaally by actuanss ceing the projecied unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit abligation is determined by discounting the eatimated! furire cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporfing period on government honds that have ferms approximating to
the serms of the relaced obligation.

The nel interest cosl {s calculated by applyving the disoount rate to the aetl balance of the defined bepefit obligation
and the [mir value of plan assels. This cost @8 included in emplovee benelit expense in (he Statement of Prafit and
LAns.

Remeasurement gains and lossex ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are

recognlsed o the period in which they occur, direc:ly in other comprehensive inotme. They are included in retained
sarnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Provident Fund

Revirement benefit n the form of provident fund (s a defined contrdbution scheme, The company has no obligation,
other than the contibuton payable o the provident fund. Contnbutions are made to provident fund in Iodia for
employess. a5 per regulations. The contrbutions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
povernment, The compuny cecognizes rontribution pavable o the provident fund scheme @8 an expense, when oo
employes remders the relzted service, If the conlmibuton payalle o thie schemes for service received before the bulaiice
sheot date caveeds the contribution already paud, the deficit payable to the scheme is revognized o= a Lability after
deducting the contibution glready paid. If the contribution already paid sxeesds the contribution due fin' services
recemved before the adonce sheel date; thet: exvess is recopnieed o8 an agsel,

rj Segment Reporting ;-
The Board of Directors of the Company constitute the Chief Opeérating Decision Malers ("CODM") which alincate
resources to ard assess the performiance of the segments of the Company,

s] Earnings Per Bhare:
Basic EPS amounts are calenlated by dividing the profit for the yenr amribuiable to equity holders of the company by
the welpghted avecage number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the prafis attsbutable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted averape number of Eguity shares nutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Eguiny
shares that would be issued on convession of all the diludyve potential Equity shares into Equity shares.




EMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financiel statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

2) Property, plant and equipment

¥ in Lacs
Particulars Leaschold Land Building Plant and Furniture Vehicles Office Computers Total
Equipments and Equipment
Groes Carrying amount
As at 1st April 2023 24942 05.96 117.73 3.32 4.32 4.60 6.94 235.28
Additions - - 1.58 0.25 570 - .12 7.65
Disposals - - 2.50 0.07 - .16 (0,14 2.87
As at 31st March 2024 2.42 95.96 116.81 3.50 10.01 4.44 6.92 240.06
As at 1st April 2022 2.42 95.96 117 36 3.32 4.32 3,53 548 232 30
Additions - - 1.28 - - 1.78 2.33 539
Disposals - - .92 . - 0.72 0.87 2,50
As at 31st March 2023 2.42 95.96 117.73 3.32 4.32 4.60 6.94 235.28
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2023 2.26 B 14 108.31 298 4.27 4.6 6.27 211.81
Charge for the year 0.15 2.06 3.62 0.12 1.24 70 0.66 B.57
Disposals < 2 2.44 0.07 = 0.10 0,14 2.75
As at 31st March 2024 2.41 86.20 109.50 3.02 5.51 4.19 6.79 217.62
As at 1st April 2022 - 21.65 104.66 207 4.20 2.74 533 201.36
Charge for the year 2.26 2.49 4.449 0.20 0.06 1.49 1.68 12.67
isposals - = U.B5 - - 0.64 0.74 2,22
As at 31st March 2023 2.26 B4.14 108.31 2.98 4.27 3.60 6.27 211.81
Net Carrying Amount
As at 31st March 2024 0.01 9.76 7.31 0.47 4.51 0.24 0.13 22.44
As at 31st March 2023 0.16 11.82 9.42 0.34 0.05 1.00 0.67 23.47

Note - During the year the company has derecognised the Plant & Equipment, Vehicles and Computers amounting to Net Block Rs. 0.11 Lacs [Gross Carrying Value
Rs. 2 87 Lacs & Accumulated depreciation Rs.2.76 Lakhs,)




SMEB WATER GHACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the yoar ended 315t March 2024

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
7 In Lacs Tin Lacs
3] Capital Work-In-Progress
Fre-aperative expenee for expansion of plant 11.00 8.30
Total : 11.00 8.30
Capital Work in Progress ageing scheduls : -
Project in Progress "“;r" 1 1-avesr | 2-3vewr ::"’“ Fhai 3 Total
A= ar 31at Mamh 2024 2.70 A.BO 1.80 2.70 11,000
As at 318l Muech 2023 A.80 1.80 2.7 - 8.30
4) Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Fixed deposit with bank (remaining maturily of mere than 12 month and kept as 7.33 -
MUArgLn money or securily ageinst bank guarantee or other commitments)
Electrivity Deposit 1.68 1.648
Total : 9.01 1.68
§) Deferred Tax Assets/ Liability:-
As at A at
Deferred Tax Assets/ [Liabilities) 31st March, ’::“f,‘:;" l:’gm“‘”"‘ 31st Mareh,
2023 2024
[T in WDV of Fixed Assets 15.62 0. 6| - 14.94
Leasing As Per IND-AS 116 0,52 {0.03) - 0.49
Expenges
Banus .60 0.0 - D65
Leave Encazhmens 72 .36 - |08
Gratuity 1.94 074 {3 10 2.58
other [tems of OC! - - (0.03) {0.03)
19.40 0.45 {0.13) 19.72
Add
MAT credit receivable 53,96 33.42 - B7.38
73.36 33.87 {0.13) 167.11
An at As at
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 31st March, T:“ﬁ';‘ :';;f"l"" 31st March,
— 2032 2023
Diff g WDV of Flaed Asacts 16,11 {0.49| - 15.62
Leasing As Per IND-AS 116 0.52 0. 5%
Expenses
Bonus 0.62 13.03) - 0.60
Leave Encashment 0.52 0,20 - 0.72
Gratuity 1.41 C.e0 f0.07} 1.94
18.66 0.83 {D.0T) 19.40
Add
MAT credit recelvalle 200,59 23.07 - 53,96
39.55 33.89 (0.07] 73.36
6] Other non current assein:-
Depasita with vendors fAuthority 2:10 3,39
Prepaid Expenscs 1.63 0.12
Total : 3.73 2,51
7) loventories :-
(A5 taken, valucd & cortificd by management at lower of Cost (Calculated on weyghied
average hasis) or Nel Realisable Value)
Stores and Spares 274 354
Stock-in-trade 16.05 19.45
Total ; 1B.79 22.99
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31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
?In Lacs T in Lacs
8] Current Investments:-
Edelwelss Liguid Fund - Regular Plan Growth 50.12 -
| Total Units © 1637.589, Cost : 50.00, Fair Marker Value : 30.12,
Carrving Yalue : 50.13)
Total : 502 >
Apgeregate value of quoted [nvestment at Cosat c :
Agrregate value of quoted Investment al Market Valhae - -
Agrregate ynlue of Unquatsd Inesatment 50,12 K
Agrregate value of Impairment in vulue of Investment - -
9] Trade receivables :-
Caonaidered pood - Unsecured
Other 28020 352.03
Unbilled Revenue . 28,98
Total : 280.20 381.01
As at 31st March 2024 | Less than 6 | & Months to 1-2 yoars 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
|  Months 1 year yeLrs
1} | Undisputed Truacde 14T.82: 5E.00 43.53 2114 9.72 280.20
receiviables - |
considered good - |
Unsecured
Total 147.82 58.00 43.53 21.14 9.72 280.20
As at 31st March 2023 | Less than 6 & Months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total ]
Months 1 year FRATE
1} | Undisputed Trade 179.946 63.87 118,36 16.01 2.81 381.0!
receivables -
conaidered good -
Unsecured
Total 179.96 63.8T7 118.36 16.01 2.51 J81.01
Note @ In the absence of due date of payment of sll ¢customer the ageing is given from the dste of ransactlon
10] Cash and cash equivalents :-
Cash on Hand .11 2,08
Balances with Banks in Current Acoount 87.24 153.14
Total : 87.36 156.28
11) Bank balansce other than cash and cash equivalents :-
Fixed deposit with bank {Remaining maturity of less than 12 month and kept as 1544 16.05
margin maoney or securily against bank guarantee or other commitments)
Total : 15.24 16.05
12) Other current financial aswets :-
Long Term Loon Given To Related Party -
Spark Mall And Parking Private 269.89 -
Earncst money deposit [or tender* 11.11 111
Total : 281.00 1.11
* Subject to Confirmation & Reconciliation
13) Current tax Assets [Not] :-
aj  Income tax For Current Year
Advance Tax 35.61 32.50
Tux Deducted At Source 11,35 5.85
Leas : Provision For Income Tax (33.54) {33.07)
Total : 13.42 5.38
14) Other Current assets ;-
Statutory Dues |
GSET paird on advanee received from customer A.h2 f.1d
Prepaid Expenses 0.93 0.54
Advance ot capi \3
Advance lo supplier 0.24 .40
Advaner o employee o 0.57 -
Total : 8.37 7.07
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31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 in Lacs % in Lacs
15) Equity Share Capital :-
Avthoriged Share Capital
30,000,000 |3 Lat Mareh 2023 30, 00, (0} equity shares of par value of 7 10/-
rEC 0000 AW 00
lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up share capital |
19,02,900 (31st Mareh 2023: 19,02.800) equity shores of par volue of 2 10/
oacn 190,24 15028
Total : 190.28 190.28
Notes :
al Terms/dehts attached to equity shares -

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share, Each holder of Eguity shares (s
entitied 1o one vole per share. The company deolames and pave dividend in Indian Ropees, The dividend proposed Ty
Direcloss (s-subject o the approval of shareholders n the ensulng Annuel Genersl Meeling.

In the event of liguidation of the eompany the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution wall be in propordon to the no. of equity shares

held by the shareholder

b Heconciliation of the number of shares and the emownt coutaranding st the beginning and end of the year

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
¢ in Lacs i in Lacs £ in Lacs ¢ in Lacs
At the beginning of the year 19,02 800 190.28 19,02 200 190,28
Add : fesued during the year - - - L
Outstanding at the end of the vear 19,02,800 190.28 19,022,800 190,28
¢ The dewmils of the Shemeholders holding more thanp 5% of sheres o the company are
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
% holding in % halding in
No.of Shares thi clath No.of Shares thi dhuss
[iy SMS Envocare Limited 103,655,500 56, 0r2% 10,65,900 LR
[} Amir Milawar 5.36,000 43,94 #,36,000 43 94
d) The details of the Sharcs held by Holding Company ©
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
% holding in % holding in
No.of Bhares the Ho.of Bhares the ck
i} SMS Envocare Limited L0 65900 56.02% 10,65,900 5, F2%
¢] Details of Bhareholding of Pramoters in the company as under:
FY 2023-24 ¥Y 2022-23
% Change % Change
Promoter N :
= i No.of Shares u8 Total During the | No.of Shares .68 Total During the
Shares Shares
year year
SMS Envocare Lid 10,653,900 36.09% 0.00% 19,65,900 56.02% 0. 0H0%h
Amit Rilawar B, 36,000 43.94% 0. 00% #,36,000 43,945 0. 005
Chetan Bora G 0.05% Ch LY Qi (0.05%: 0.0 0%
Total 19.02,800 100.00% 0.00% 19,02,800 100.00% 0.0:0%
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 in Laecs Tin Lacs
16) Other Equity :-
fil| Retmined Eamming :
Balancr gs 1y beginning of Reporting period 281.96 A3.24
Add : Profit for the vesr 200077 198.72
Baance as al end of Reporting perinc Total: 482.T4 281.96
{ii} Other Comprehensive Income ;
Baance as at Begirning of Reparting Period 0.82 (.6
Add : Items thar will not be reclassified to profit of loss (Net of taxes) Q.28 0,21
Add @ lberns thar will be reclsssified (o profit or loss (Net of toces) Q.08 =
Baanoce as-at end of Reporting penoc 119 0.82
Total: 483.93 282.78
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17) Nan-Current Leass Liabilies :-
Lnage Liahilitics o per IND-AS 116

18] Nop-Current Provisions :-
Provision for Employee Broefits
Provizion for gransty
Provasion for Leave Benefils

19} Current Lease Liabilies :-
Lease LiabiliHes as per IND-AS 116

20] Trade Payables :
Due to Micro & Small Enterprizes
Cthiers

Nate

DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

e Company has duess to suppliers registered under biicro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006
I'MSMED Act)]. The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act {s show below

Total :

Tatal :

d1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
{in Lacs % in Lacs

1.58 1,85

1.58 1.89

.33 6.78

324 209
12.46 B.88
il 0,28
0.31 0.28

0.29 0.06
10.00 19,68
10.30 18.73

1} the principal amount remaining anpaid e any supplier at the end of Q.29 D05
each Rocounting year;
¥ the intoroat duoe on the principal amount remaining unpaid to any -
aupplier ot the 2nd of each accounting year
5 Principal amounts paid to suppiers regsteted under the MSMED - B
Aet, beyond the appointed
4]  Interest paid, uader Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - -
regstered under the MEMED Act, bevond the appuinted day dunng
i)  Interest due and payuble r Uie period delay in making payment -
beyand the appointed day durmg the year, other than those speciled
f  the amoont of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of -
ench eocounting year,
Tl the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in -
the succeeding vears,
Less Than 1 More than 3
Total
As at 31ast March 2024 Year 1-2 years 2-3 yeuTs
1} | Cutstanding dues to MSME 0,29 - - - .39
21 | Others O.0f/ n.ns - - 1000
Total 10.256 0.04 - - 10.30
Less Than 1 More than 3
-, 2- BTS Tlﬂ‘-ll
As at 31st March 2023 Year 1-3 years 3 ye ¥
i) | Owstanding dues to MSME 0.05 - - - 0.05
3 | Othera 19,68 - - - 159,68
Tatal 19.73 - - - 19.73

Note « [n the abesence of due date of payment of all purchases the ageing i given from the date of transaction
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21] Other Current Financial Liabilities :
Salary Payable
Bomuas Payahble
Flan| leence fres payalile
Expenses Payahle

Statutory Duss Pavable
Tax deducted al souree
Goods dud Serviee tax
Employee siaie iInsurance corporalion
Provident fund
Hefindable 1o Custamers
Advances fmm Customers

23) Current Provisions ;
Provision for Employee Benefit:
Prowisiog (or Cratuity
Provigion for Leave Benelits

24) Revenue from Operations
fa) Sale of Services -
Waste Treatment Charges
bl Sale of produces -
Bapgs Sale=
Fornp Sales
lc} Unbilled Revenue :-
Bags and Consumable Sales
Waste Treatment Chiirges

25) Other Incomae
Interest income on
fixmed deposit receipts
Income Tax Refund
Elcotricity dupasil
On Unsecured Loan

26) Direct Expenacs
Consumptian of Fuel
Labour Charges
Vehicle Hire Charges
Electricity Expenses
Whste Naposal Charges
Repairs & Maintennnce
Other Direct Expense
Consumption T Spares & Tonals
Loading And Unloading OF Waste
Vehicle Fue] for Waste Collection
Sample Testing And Anslysis Charpes
ETP Operation And Mamtenance
Consumption of chemicals

27] Purchases of Stock-in-Trade :
Bags and consumables

Total :

Total :

Total :

Tatal :

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
T in Lacs 1 in Lacs
a.82 6.01
2.49 2.32
119.00 LO7.00
1.58 .71
130.20 119.04
0.24 .46
16540 17.02
023 .21
2.08 1.08
254 323
55.20 51.490
77.34 73.89
0. 70 0.67
0.8 .66
1.69 1.33
439,15 431,63
234.26 192.14
3604 3z
- 12.38
- 13.50
T04.45 679.77
1.31 2.97
0.15 0.97
.07 0.06
16.53 2
18.07 4.00
74.23 71,85
T4.689 58,89
44 45 42,37
1572 17.08
1534 .42
12.54 1646
640 4.08
£.39 4.75
2.1 1.38
2.38 2.88
L75 2.19
1.74 1,33
p.0a 0.7l
258,67 234.40
7E.70 60,63
78.TO 60.63




SM8 WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year anded 315t March 2024
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

{in Lacs T in Lacs
28) Changes in inventarias of Stock-in-Trade :
Openung Invertaries:
Bags and consumables 19.45 41.76
Clesing love ies
Bags and censumablea 16,05 19.45
Total : 3.40 22.30
29] Employee Benefit Expenses
Salnrics & Wages:
Saluries and Wages 03,88 To.EE
Honus 501 4.091
Leave Encashment 1.38 > Ta
Gipaludey ® 2.85 231
Contribution to provident and other funds 11.11 633
Siaff Weliare 0.86 .92
Total : 115.10 97.08

Note:- Since the Gratuity Is unfunded the same is clubbed under head Salaries & Wages as per the guidance note on
Diviston-I1 INDY AS of Schedule [ to the compenies act, 2013,

30) Finance Costs

Interest on Lease Q.92 .25
Late pavment of statutory dues - 3.0
Irterest on late payment of Ty deducted at sotrce - .00
Total : 0.22 0.31
31} Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation of Tanpihls Asssrs 8.57 12.6T
Total : B.57 12.67

32) Other Expenses

Licence Fees 12.03 12.03
Office Expenses 833 13.8%
Accouad= Writters OfF 715 0.33
Trovelling Expenses / Lodgng ¢ Conveysnce Expenses 740 B.63
Admin Vehisle Expenses 5.58 2.47
Administrative Kxpenses 4.50 4y
Consultancy & Professional Charges 262 3.35
Pantrv & Housekespmg Expenses 2.48 1.98
Insurance 1.U8 0,74
Rent Lo -
Telephone Charges 0.99 1.05
Audit Fee 0.99 0.99
G5T Expenscs .78 S5.4]
Computer Repairs & Maintenance 0.62 0,91
Legal Experoses U4s .25
Bank charges 0.8 0.53
Printing & Statonery 0.24 1.01
Other Expennes Qs
MCA /ROC Fees o.13 D19
Luss gn disposal of property, plant & equipment (o8 B 0.27
Postage & Courier Exp 0.07 0,09
Total : 27.43 98.52




BME WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT FRIVATE LIMITED
Hotes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

43] Contingent Liabilities, Curantees, Contingent Assets & commitments

i)  Cluimgs against Company not acknowledpe as Deht
iy Commitments

a.  Capiml Commitmenta

b.  Revenue Commilmenis
il Conlingent assets

34) Payment to Auditors

Audit fee [Excluding Taxes)

35) Related Party Transactions
List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transsctions have taken place and

relationahip:
ja) Holding Company
SMS Envacare Limited

jh) Hey Management Personal
1. Kishore Malvivia- Director
2. Prabal Pratapsingh Jadon - Director

Others
Subsidiary of Holding Co,
Butibarl CETP Pve Ltd
SME Water Grace Envimprotect Pet Lid
SMS Wahayy CETP Pyt Ltd
Eavotech Waste Management Lid
Enviroprotect Waste Management Lud
SME Oreentech Pyt Lid
Panda Envocare Lid
Muharashira Enviro Power Limited
SMS Envnclean Pvt, Lid.
SME Water Grace BMW Pyt Ltd
Western Integrated Waste Menagement Facility Pvt Ld
Nilnwar Watergrace Woste Monagement Pt Ltd

Sub Ultimate

SMS Mine Developers Pet. Lid.

Spark Mull and Parking Pvt, Ltd

5MS Taxd Cabs Pet. Lud

SMS Infolink Pvt. Lid

SME Tolls And Developers Lid.

SME Vidyut Pyt Lud,

SMS5-AABS India Toliways Private Limited
PT, SME Minerals Internaticnnl

EME Mining Limited

Ayodhva Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Pyt Lid.
EMEL Kerki MDO Project Limited

SMS Waste Management Pvi. Lid

FT. 5MS Mines Indonesia

SME Hoeardous Waste Manapement Pt Ltd

Aspociates of Ultimate Holding Co.
RCCL Infrastructure Lid
SME AAMW Tollways Pyt Lid,

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 in Lacs ¥in Laes
1.65 0.50

0.99 0.83

T 0.3

3. Aditya Nilawar - Director

Ultimate Holding Co.
SMS Lid.

Joint Ventures of Ultimate Holding Co.
SMS Infrustructure Ltd, & D, Thaldoar
Constniction Pyt Led. W

Bhaktilnimar M. Sencheti Ltd, & & N Thakkar
Construction Pvt. Ltd. JV

Sanbro Corporation

Saket- SMSIL (V)

SRRCIPL- SMSL [TV

SRRCIPL- SMSL [JV]-Mahbubnegsr
SMSL-MEPFL JV Durg paclage-A

SMSIL KTCO WV

Bhartiya SMSIL V)

SMS Infrastructure Ltd, Shreenath Enterprises J.V,
AGIPL-SMSIL (V)

G&J Envo Ltd. In consortum with SM3
Infrastructuse Lid

SMS Infrastructure Lid - Asrti Infre-Projects Pet
bad. J.v,

SMSIL-MEPL-BRAPL |1V}

GOCL-SMBIL [JV )

SMSL-SRRCIPL V)

SMBIL-MBPL |JV]

Meghe SMS Healtn Sciences Consortium {Spy)
SRRCIPL-SMSL-BEKEM [IV)

Individuals having Material Influence & their
Enterprieses

Ajay Sanchetl

Anand Sanchet

Paraamveer Sanchet

Akshay Sanchetl

San Finance Corporation | Partnership Firm)
Amnit Nilawar
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(¢} Transactions carried out with related parties

2 in Lacs
Name of Related party Nature of Year Ended Related Parties
Transactions Referred in (a] |Referrad in (b) |Referred in (o)
; ) ; 31-Mar-24 - - .66
Purchase of Material & Services ST Mar33 - . e
; =T 31-Mar-24 - = -
Sale of Matesial & Se
= ot e fees Al=-Mar-23 - =
" 31-Mar-24 55.00 =
Loan i d ;
sk Jond bl TR 7R AA.26 -1 _
Loan gecepred during the year ;_:ﬂ:::;; ‘!::2: : :
" 3:-Mar-24 = .
Deposit & Advances Hrc:Jw:f:'. 3 Mar 33 - —
y . 31-Mar-24 - 3 =
o :l -
Depesit & Advances Pai 31 -Maro3 N = =
Crutstanding Balanoes included in 31-Mar-24 - = =
ansels Al-Mar-23 - - -
Outatanding Balances inclued in 31-Mnr-24 P .
hahilites 3i-Mar-23 - = =
36) Employee Benefit Obligations :
1) Gratulty Obligation
A Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23|
Particulars
- 1in Lacs 1 in Lacs
iPresent Value of Benefit Obligation] 2.02 745
Frdr value of plan assets - -
Funded Status {(Surplusf [Beficit]) - -
Net (Linbility)/Asset Recogmnized in the Balance Sheet 2.93 7.45
B. Movements in plan assets and plan labilitiea
There are nn plan assets & labilities since the obligation is net funded
€. Amouni recognised io the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employes Benefit Expenses
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
4 in Lacs % in Lacs
Serviee Cost 2.30 1.94
Net intecest Cost 0.55 038
Net impact on the Profit [ [Loss) before tax - 2.85 2,31
D. Amount recognised io the Statement of Profit and Loss us Other Comprebensive Income
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
T in Lacs f in Lacs
Actusrial [Gains)/ Lusses on Obligation For the Periad [0.38)] [0.25)
Not {Incomae)/Exponss For the Period Recagnized in OCI {0.35)] (0.28)
E. Change in Present Value of Obligations
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
e % in Lacs % in Lacs
Opening of defined beneft abligations TS 542
Service cost '2-3"9 1.94
interest Cost 0.55 .38
Benefit Paid = E
Actuarial [Gain) /Loss on total hahilities: ) [0.35] |[:|.2.&|.E
- dur to chonge in financinl assumptions [0.24] [0.24)
- dure w change in demopraphic assumpUons - by
- dite to experiencs variance 10.04 L2, CHH)
993 7.45

Closing of defined benefit obligation
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F. Assumptions
The assumptions under Ind A5 19 are set by reference to macket conditions at the valuanen date. The Muterial
actuarial sassumptions were ae follows:
Particulara Al-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
2 in Lacs £ in Lacs
Espevted Return on Plon Asseta N.A
Raze of Discounting T A2 | TAZH
Rate of Salary Increase B.00
Withdsawal raie 14.73% | 14, 73%
Mortality Rate 100 % of 1ALM 2012-14
Averape future service fin Years) 27 B1 Years- | Z7.81 Ycars
G. Benmitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the defined henefit obligution to chunges in the weighted key assumptions are;
31-Mar-24]  Impact
T Tin Lacs| [Absclute] Impact %
Base Liability 5,97 - .
Increase Discount Rate Ly 0.50% 9.62 {0,340 -3.003%
Decrease Discount Rate by 0.50% 10.24 0.32 3.22%
Increase Salary Inflation by 1.00% 10.56 0.64 6.53%
Decrrase Splary Inflation by 1.00% 534 10.58) =59 %
Increase Withdrawsal Rare by 1 0C% 9.78 {0.14) -1.46%
Decresse Withdrawsal Rate by 1.00% 7.57 0.15 1.52%,
MNote -
1} The hase liability is cale: lated at discount rate of 7.42 % per annum and salary inflation rate of 8.00 % per
aiAuin for all future vears.
2)  Liahilities ars very sensitive to salary escalation rate, discount rate & withdrawal rate
3} Liabilitles are very legs sensitive due to change in mortglity sssumptions. Hence, sensitivities due
1o change In mortality are ignored.
H. The defined benafit obligations shall matiire aftér year end 314t March, 2024 as follows:
Projected Benefit Obligation Payahble in fotnre Years from the date of 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
reporting ?in Lacs ¥ in Lacs
18t Fallowing Year 0.74 0.67
2nd Following Year 077 0.61
3rd Following Year 1.34 | 065}
sth Following Year 1.26 1L.00
5th Following Year 1.20 0,93
After 5th Yesr 1219 9.56
37) Financial risk m t o ive and policies ;-

The Company's principal finencial labilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables snd financinl
guarantee contracts The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finence the Company’s operations and to
provide guarantees to suppart its operations. The Company's principal fnancial assets include loans, trade and other
receivabiles, current investment end cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its eperations. The Company
iz exposed to market risk, credit cisk and Hguidity dsk The Company’s senior managemeni oversees the managemernt
af these risks. The Company's senior manasgement ensures that financial nsk sctivities are governed by appropriate
pulfies and procedures and thar financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. The senitr management reviewsy and agreed policies for managing each of
these risles, which are summarised below:

Market risk :-
Market riak is the risk that the fair value of futurc cash flows of o Goancial mstrument will fluctuste because of
changes in market pricos. Market risk comprisca three types of risk: mterest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as equity price dsk and commoadity risk. Finoneinl instruments affected by markel rsk include
lonns and boarmowings, deposits el

Interest Rate Risk:-
Interest tote risk is the nsk that the future cash flows with respect to intercst payments on barrowings will
fluctuate becauss of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure ta the fsk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating intereat rates, however
the company docs not bave any long-terin debt abligation with floating intarest rates. -
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iij

Foreign Currency Risk :-
The company does nol have any [reign currency rsk CRpOSLTE

Other Price Riak :-
The company has not made any investmen! io equity securities hence no exposure

Credit Risk :

Credit risk is the riek that the counrerparty will not meet itz obligations under a financial msmament or «
caetomer contract, leading to u financial logs. The Company i# expoded to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables & finonoinl puarsniess), The company measure the expecrsd credit loes of trade
receivable based on historical, trend, industiral practices snd business environment in which the entity operates,
Loss sates are based on actual credit loes experience and business experience, loss on collecton of receivables (s
nat material hence no proviezon considered.

i) Recsivable

Particulars 31-Mar-34 31-Mar-23

T in Laca % in Lacs
1-90 dayws past due 108 18 6655
91 to 180 days past due 39.63 111.90
More than | B0 devs past due 132.38 19932
Total 280.20 377.78

b) Finaneizl Guarantes

— 31-Maz-24] 31-Mar-23
Particul % in Lacs fin Lacs
Bank Grurantes - 258
- - | 3.58

Liguidity Risk :

The Company momitors @8 nsk of 8 shortage of funds using a hqudity planning mal. The Company's ohjectve is
i maintEin a balance between oontinuity of fancing and flexibaity through the vee of cash eredit mctlity and
hank lnans. Liguidity rsk o defined as the mak that the Company w1l not o able ta settle or meet ita nbligations
an Hme or A a reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury departmens iz responsible for Tiguidity,
mnding as well nx =ettement management. 0 addibon, proceeses and piiicios related 0 2uch rsks are overseen
h}' RETIINT MAnAgeEment.

Maturity Pattern of borrowings { in Lacs

ARAE ™ 0-1 Years 1-5 years Beyond 5 years Total

Lang Term borrowings| Tncluding Current

Mantusity of Long term Debt) - - - -
Shorl Tenn Burrowings - - = -
Total - - . :

As at 31st March, 2023 0-1 Years 1-5 a ]
Long Term borrowangsyf Including Current i
Mantusity of Long term Debit) - - - -
Shart Term Borrowings - - i =
Total - - 5 :

Maturity Patterns of Other Financial Liabilities

? in Lacs
. [ Beyond 12 |

As at 31st March, 2024 0 -6 months | 6123 months months | Total
Trade payables 10.30 - - 10.30
Crher Financial Liability 130,20 - - 130,20
Tatal 140.49 - - 140.49

Beyond 12

As at 31st March, 3023 0 -6 montha 6-12 months monthe Total
Tracde payables E 19.73 - = 19.73
Other Finenclal Lisblility 118.04 < - 1 19,04
Total ) 138.77 - - 138.T7
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38) Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capilal management, capital includes lssued equity capital, securities premium and
all other equity resecves attributeble 1o the equily hoiders. The primary objective of the Company's capital

managemen! is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Campany's capllal management objectives are to maintain equity ineluding all reserves 1o protect coonotnic
vinbillly and (o finance eny growth opporunities that may be avallable in fulure so as to maximise shareholders'

vmluie,

The management and the board of directors maoniters the return on sapital ag well as the level of dividends to (ke
sharrholders. The Company manages ite capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of ehanges in economie

ronditions.,
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
I %in Lacs 1 in Lacs
Borrowings - .
Trade payables 10,320 19.73
Other payables 13020 119,04
Less: cash and cash equivalents BT .36} [155.28)
Net debt 53.14 [16.51]
Egqnity 67424 173.06
Total capital 674.21 473,06
Capltal and net debt 737,34 456,55
_Gearing Ratio T.31% -3.62%
39) Earnings Per Share:
31-Mar.24 31-Mar-23
¥in Lacs T in Lacs
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EFS compuatanons.
Contlouing operatons
Profit/ {lnss) after tax 200.77 198.72
Het profit for calculation of basic EPS ZDD.E}' WE.E
Net proflt ns above 00,77 198.72
Effect of dilution - -
Net profit/(loss) for caleulation of diluted EPS 200.77 198,72
Weighted average number of equity shares in caloulating basic EFS 1902800 1902800
Weighted average number of equity sheres in caloulating diluted EPS 1902800 1502800
Earnings per equity share:
Basie 10,55 10.44
Diluted 10,585 1044
40 Reconcillation of Comprehensive Income ?in Lacs
31-Mar-23
Tots]l Comprehensive as per sudited finacial statements 10545
Adjustments Impoct - Gain /(Loss)
Prior Period Expenses
Earlier Year Mat Adjustment
Prior Period Income
Total Comprehensive Income reflected in profit & loss 105.45
Reconciliation of Other Equity
31-Mar-23
Other squity ng per audited finacisl statements B3.83
Prior Period Expenses FY 2031-22
Earhior Year Mal Adjustment 3
83.82

Total Comprehensive Income reflected in Other Equity

41) Begmeant Reporting :-

In aecordanee with Accounting Stundard Ind AS 108 “Opersting Segment’, tho company's business n-:n-.rirgfr falls
within a single segment viz. “Biomedical Waste Mangerment & Disposal®, and the services are rendered only in the

domestic market henee Segment reporting not applicable.
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42) Fair value messuremeant
The fair values of the Anancial azeets and Hubilities are included at the smotint at which the instrument could be exchonged
It1 @ current transaction between willing parties, other than in a foreed or lgoidetion aale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimute the fai- values:
Il Fair valtie of eurrent assets which incudes lcans phven, cash and cash equiviients, other bank balances and other
Tinanecial assets approsimate their carrying amounta langsly due to short teem mutusities of these instruments,

2| Financial instruments with fixed and varable interest rates are evaluated hy the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Bused on thiz evaluerion, allowances are taken to

necount for cxpected loases of these roccivables. Accordingly, far value of such instruments is ool motcrally different
from their carmrving amounts

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financal mstruments by

valuatinn technigque:
Leve] I

Cuated junadjusted] prives in active market= for identical assets or lishilities.

Lewve] 3

Giher teehnigues lor which major mpuois which have s Material effect on the recorded fair value are observible, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3

Technigues which use inpuis that have a Materlal effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data (Unobservabile input data),

tin Laca
Financial Assets & Mon Current| Current Total Fair Value | Fair Value | Carried at Total
Ldubrilities as at 31st March, through |through OCI| amortised Amount
2024 Profit & Loss Cost
Financial Asscts
Trade Recetvable 280,20 280.20 - TR 280,20
Cash & eash Equivalents 87.d6 B7.36 - B7.36 &7.36
Bank balanare atker than fu} abaove 15,94 1644 - 1544 15.44
Criber finuncial sssety .01 281.00 290.01 - 290.01 FEL01]
Total G901 fifrs. (1 a7 67301 B7.5.0H
Financial Liah{lities
Barmwinge - -
[hher Finaneial Liabitition 130,20 120.20 130,240 13030
Tinde peyables 10,30 10.30 10.30 10.30
Total - 144,49 140,49 £ * 140,49 140,99

T in Lacs

Financial Assets & Non Current| Current Total Fair Valug | Fair Value | Carried at Total
Linmbilitins as at 31at March, through through OCT| amortissd Amount
2023 Profit & Loss Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Recetmble 381.01 AR1.01 3810} dARj 0]
Cash & coah Equivolents 155.28 155,38 15528 155.28
ank balanace other than {iii above 1605 16,05 - 16.05 16.05
Oher financial aspets .68 1.11 .78 2T TR
Total 1.8 253,44 aaalld 55512 5512
Finaneinl Linhilties
Berrowinge - - - - - -
Other Financial Linbilitica 119.04 119.04 119,04 119.04
Toaale pawniles 19.73 154.73 = 19.73 1973
Total - 13877 $A8.TY - 13877 13897
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43) The Followings are analytical ratlio for the year

(et Frofit / Total Investmeni)

8L Particular Numerator | Denominutor | Current Period | Previous % Reasan for Veriance

Nao. Period | Variance

()  [Current Hatio 754,69 219.73 3.43 2,75 25%  [Current Hato incrcased dus to repavment of
{Current Assets [ Current Liahilitics) luans,

b) [Debi-Equity Ratin 674.21 . = - 0 Debt-Equity Ratie decreaned due to repoyment
(Fotal Debt / Total Equity] of all lean

[} (Debi Service Coverage Ratlo - =) - = 0%
{PAT + Inlerest * Non Cash liems + Lozs/ [Profil} an
aale ol fixsed gssels [ Totol Ingtallmen] ineluding
interes|

{fl  |Return on Hoguliy Hatin (%) Qe Rl 35% S -18%
(Net Income [ Shareholder Equity) Due Increase in Avemulnted Profits

el |lnventory furnover ratio B2.05 I7.75 4.62 2.38 103%  |[Inventary turnover ratio moresased due to sale
(Cost of ooty sold [/ Averuge inventory) of old stock

il |Trade Recelvables turnover mtio 704.45 | 330,60 2.13 173 23
(Net sales / Average accounts receivable) |Due to Recovery from Deblors

lgl  |Trade payables turnover ratio 160,31 15.01 10.68 445 | 140%
(Net puncbiase [/ Average actounis payalile)

ihl  |Met eapital turniover ratio 704,45 534.96 1.32 La2 | 27
INet Sales / Working Capltal) Due to incresse i1 Loans Gl

] Net profit ratio (') 200,77 T4, 45 A9 Aty =1%
[Profit After Tax [/ Value of Sales & Services)

(i) _|Return on Capital empioyed (%) 200 64 4899 A5, 2H B
(EBIT & Exceptional Item / [Total Aszsets - Carrent
Lizbility)

(ki |Return oo investment [%) KA MA NA NA NA
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44| A reconciliation of the income tax expenases to the amount computed by applying the stotutory (ncome tax rate to

the profit before income taxes (s aummarized below:

Tax Expense:

Profit Before Tax

Other comprehensive incoime before tax

Total comprehensive income before Lax

lndian Staturory Incotne Tax Rate

Expected Income Tax Expenses

Tax Effect of adjustments to reconecile expected Ineome Tax Expanses
Tax Effect of Non Deductible exprnses

Tax Effect of Deductions under section 80IA

Dedustion u/n B0JIAN

Re-atatement of earlier year DTA due ta change in tax rate

Bonus payable considered as allowable expenditure in ITR

Earlier Year Tax

Other adjustments

Tatal income tax axpense recognised in Profit & Loss

a] Teaxon normal income recognised in profit and loss

b Tax on other comprehensive income recognised in profit and loss
Total tax recognised in profit and loss

31-Mar-24 A1-Mar-23
tin Lacs ¥in Laes
200,43 157 B4
0.50 0,24
200.92 198.12
26.0084 26007
52.24 H1.51
= 0.02
(51.30) (51.13
(0.40) {1.04)
10.09) 0.07
10.25) (0. 14)
0.20 {0.75)
1. 34) (0.8
0.13 _0.o7
[0.20) (0.75)

45) Disclosures for some of the key disclosure requirement for lessee involves disclosing amounts relating to the

reporting period for the following items :

iin Lacs

8l Ne Particular

1 | Depreciation _c_hq:_'gc_ for right-of-use assets

FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23

815

i |lnterest expense on lease linbilities

0.22

Expernse related to =hort term assets acoounted on WDV or other

il
svateimallc basls over lease term

Tatnl cash outflow for lease other than sale and lesseback transaction

v Total cash outflow for sale and leaseback transaction

L Interest ncome re:'nngine:l on 50 given under lease

vil  |Addition of nght-of-use azsets

vill  |Carmving value of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period

0.01

[E Gain/(Loss) arismg from sale and leaseback transaction

46) Party halances are subject to confirmation and the balances shown under Trade Recejvsbles, Trade Payahles, Loan and

advances have approximately the same realisable value as shown in the fineneials

47) Company ls not required to spent un TSR Expenditure as the company is not qualified for any of the following eriteda

stipulated per provision of section 135 of the Compunies Act
A Networth of or more than five hundred crores rupees or
b, Turnover of one thousand crores rapsss ur mose
¢ Net profit of rapees five coome or more during eny preceding three financial vear

48) Previous vear's figures have been regrouped /recasted, wherover necossarny

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
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